User Manual [Ver 1.0] Air Quality Monitoring System (CS-AQMS1)

Please use this Manual for the best user's experience

Last updated: March 7, 2024





Disclaimer

CS-AQMS1 is designed only to monitor particulate matter, gases, temperature, relative humidity, and barometric pressure; it does not monitor the quality of the accompanying products, goods, or commodities, but does not monitor CS-AQMS1 quality.

Copyright

©2024 by CredoSense Inc. (Ltd.). All rights reserved. No part of this user guide may be reproduced, distributed, or transmitted in any form or by any means, including photocopying, recording, or other electronic or mechanical methods, without the prior written permission of CredoSense Inc. (Ltd.). This document is intended as a guide, not to improve the performance of the products. Information presented in this manual is subjected to change without any notice to the users. To get an updated copy of this User Manual, please visit the Product Page.

Publisher

First Published in March 2024 by CredoSense Inc. (Ltd.) support@credosense.com | www.credosense.com

Contents

1	Introduction
	1.1 Description
	1.2 Application of CS-AQMS1 1
2	Unboxing
3	System Components
	3.1 CS-AQMS1 Annotation 3
	3.2 LED Status
4	Technical Specification and Key Features
-	4.1 Technical Specification
	4.1.1 Particulate Matter Measurement
	4.1.2 Temperature, Relative Humidity, and Barometric Pressure 4
	4.2 Gas Sensor Specification
	4.2.1 Volatile Organic Compound (VOC)
	4.2.2 Nitrogen Oxide (NO _x)
	4.2.3 Carbon Dioxide (CO ₂) \ldots 5
	4.2.4 Carbon Monoxide (CO)
	4.2.5 Ozone (O_3)
	4.2.6 Sulfur Dioxide (SO ₂)
	4.2.7 Formaldehyde (CH ₂ O) \ldots 6
	4.2.8 Hydrogen Sulfide (H_2S)
	4.2.9 TVOC
	4.3 Key Features
	4.4 Data Logging and Networking Connectivity8
5	Installation
•	5.1 Mounting the Device
	5.2 Setting up cloud account
	5.3 Setting up CS-AQMS1
	5.3.1 Connect computer or phone to the CS-AQMS1
	5.3.2 CS-AQMS1 Configuration
6	Using the System
	6.1 Sign-in to Cloud
	6.2 Dashboard Overview
	6.2.1 Data Summary
	6.2.2 Live Monitoring 19
	6.2.3 Editing Device and Finding Information
	6.2.4 Download Data 21
	6.2.5 Buy/Extend Subscription
7	Safety Information
,	7.1 Precautions
8	Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) 28

1 Introduction

1.1 Description

CredoSense Air Quality Monitoring System (CS-AQMS1) is a cutting-edge solution designed for the precise measurement and continuous logging of various air quality parameters in your surroundings. It is equipped to monitor a wide spectrum of particulate matter (PM 1, 2.5, 4, and 10), along with an array of gases, including CO, CO_2 , O_3 , CH_4 , SO_2 , NO_2 , NO_x , H_2S , CH_2O , VOC, and TVOC.

The CS-AQMS1 operates on a cloud-based platform, suitable for both indoor and outdoor use. To ensure secure data storage, a backup microSD card is integrated into the device, mitigating potential issues arising from power failures or internet connectivity disruptions. Once power is restored or the internet connection resumes, the stored data is seamlessly uploaded to the cloud server. The CS-AQMS1 is available in four distinct models (Table 1), each offering unique features.

Table 1: CS-AQMS	S1 available versio	on
------------------	---------------------	----

#SL	Model	Connectivity	Sensors
1	CS-AQMS1-W	WiFi	PM; Temp., RH, & BMP
2	CS-AQMS1-WL	WiFi, 4G LTE	PM; Temp., RH, & BMP
3	CS-AQMS1-WG	WiFi	PM; Temp., RH, & BMP; Gas sensors
4	CS-AQMS1-WLG	WiFi, 4G LTE	PM; Temp., RH, & BMP; Gas sensors

Users have the flexibility to choose up to three gas sensors for a CS-AQMS1.

1.2 Application of CS-AQMS1

Some of the key important applications of the CS-AQMS1 are listed below:

- **Traffic Management:** Monitoring air quality near roadways for effective traffic control and pollution reduction.
- **Smart Cities:** Integrating air quality data into urban planning for sustainable and healthy city development.
- **Healthcare:** Ensuring clean air in hospitals and clinics to protect patients and staff from airborne contaminants.
- **Industrial Compliance:** Managing emissions and ensuring workplace safety in industrial settings.
- **Occupational Safety:** Protecting workers in construction and mining from harmful particulates and gases.
- **Research and Studies:** Conducting environmental research and tracking long-term trends for scientific insights.
- **Emergency Response:** Rapidly assessing air quality during disasters to implement timely evacuation and safety measures.
- **Agriculture:** Assessing air quality's impact on crops and maintaining optimal conditions in greenhouses.

2 Unboxing

Figure 1 illustrates the contents included in the package upon customer unboxing. Items are listed as follows:

- a) CS-AQMS1 Device
- b) Temperature and relative humidity probe
- c) 5V, 4A power adapter (AC to DC)
- d) Mounting bracket for the probe
- e) Zip tie (4 pcs)
- f) Double-sided foam tape
- g) Screw (6 pcs)
- h) microSD card
- i) Royal plug (6 pcs)



Figure 1: Devices and accessories a customer will receive upon unboxing.

3 System Components

3.1 CS-AQMS1 Annotation

Figure 2 provides a visual representation of the configuration and placement of diverse components within the structure.



Figure 2: Annotated CS-AQMS1 Structure and Component Overview

3.2 LED Status

Table 2, displays the various LED blink patterns that a user may encounter while operating CS-AQMS1, along with their corresponding meanings.

Table 2: Summary of LED blinks and its interpretation		
No. of LED blink/second	Interpretation	
0	Initialize device	
1	Normal Operation	
2	No internet connection	
3	Sensor error	
4	Internal backup storage is full	

4 Technical Specification and Key Features

4.1 Technical Specification

4.1.1 Particulate Matter Measurement

Measurement range	0 to 1000 μ g/m ³ .
Mass conc. measurement	PM1, PM2.5, PM4, and PM10
Measurement resolution	$1 \mu g/m^3$.
Sensor lifetime	10 years.
Mass conc. accuracy	PM1 & PM2.5: 5% (0-100 μg/m ³), 10% (100-1000 μg/m ³).
	PM4 & PM10: 25% (0-1000 μg/m ³).
Operating range	Temperature: -20 to 50°C.
	Relative humidity: 20-99% (non-condensing).
	Barometric pressure: 300-1200 mbar.
Startup time	< 60 s .
Response time	< 30 s .
Storage	Temperature: -40 to 70°C.
	Relative Humidity: 0-99%.
Acoustic emissions level	24 dBA at 0.2m.
Long term acoustic emission	+0.5 dB(A)/ year.
level drift	

4.1.2 Temperature, Relative Humidity, and Barometric Pressure

Operating range	Temperature: -40 to 85°C.
	Relative humidity: 0 to 99% (non-condensing).
	Barometric pressure: 300 to 1200 mbar (30 to 120 kPa).
Accuracy	Temperature:
	Typical ±0.1°C (0-60°C), max. ±0.3°C (-40 to 85°C).
	Relative humidity:
	$\pm 1\%$ typical and 2% max (0-90%) and $\pm 3\%$ (91-100%).
	Barometric pressure: ± 1 mbar (0 to 65° C).
Resolution	Temperature: 0.01°C.
	Relative humidity: 0.01%.
	Barometric pressure: 0.01 mbar.
Response time	Temperature: 2s.
	Relative humidity: 4s.
	Barometric pressure: 1s.

4.2 Gas Sensor Specification

4.2.1 Volatile Organic Compound (VOC)

Sensor output	0-500 VOC Index.
Response time (τ 63%)	< 108
Device-to-device variation	$< \pm 15$ VOC Index points.
Repeatability	$< \pm 5$ VOC Index points.

4.2.2 Nitrogen Oxide (NO_x)

Sensor output	0-500 NO $_x$ Index.
Response time (τ 63%)	< 30s
Device-to-device variation	$< \pm 50$ NO _{<i>x</i>} Index points.
Repeatability	$< \pm 10$ NO _{<i>x</i>} Index points.

4.2.3 Carbon Dioxide (CO₂)

Range	400-5000 ppm.
Accuracy	±(50 ppm + 2.5% of reading): 400 - 1000 ppm.
	±(50 ppm + 3% of reading): 1001 - 2000 ppm.
	±(40 ppm + 5% of reading): 2001 - 5000 ppm.
Repeatability	±10 ppm.
Response time	60 s.
Additional accuracy drift af-	± (5 ppm + 0.5 % of reading)
ter five years	

4.2.4 Carbon Monoxide (CO)

0-1000 ppm.
1000 ppm.
\leq 2 ppm.
< 30s.
< 1%.
\leq 2 ppm.
0.1 ppm.
> 5 years in air.
-40°C to 55°C.
800 to 1200 hPA.
15-95%.
Hydrogen (20 ppm in 100 ppm concentration).

4.2.5 Ozone (O₃**)**

Measurement range	0 - 5 ppm.
Maximum overload	10 ppm.
Accuracy	\leq 0.05 ppm.
Response time	< 60s
Repeatability	< 2%.
Lower detectable limit (LDL)	\leq 0.05 ppm.
Resolution	0.01 ppm.
Expected lifetime	> 24 Months.
Long-term drift	< 1% / month.
Temperature range	-20°C to 40°C.
Pressure range	800 to 1200 hPA.
Operating humidity range	15-95%.
Cross sensitivity	Sulfur Dioxide (1 ppm in 5 ppm concentration).

4.2.6 Sulfur Dioxide (SO₂)

Measurement range	0 - 50 ppm.
Maximum overload	100 ppm.
Accuracy	\leq 1 ppm.
Response time	< 60s
Repeatability	< 1%.
Lower detectable limit (LDL)	\leq 1 ppm.
Resolution	0.1 ppm.
Expected lifetime	> 3 years in air.
Long-term drift	< 1% / month.
Temperature range	-40° C to $+55^{\circ}$ C.
Pressure range	800 to 1200 hPA.
Operating humidity range	15-95%.
Cross sensitivity	Chlorine (-1 ppm in 10 ppm concentration)
	Nitric Oxide (< -3ppm in 25 ppm concentration)
	Hydrogen Cyanide (< 5ppm in 10 ppm concentration)

4.2.7 Formaldehyde (CH₂O)

Measurement range	0 - 5 ppm.
Maximum overload	10 ppm.
Accuracy	\leq 0.05 ppm.
Response time	< 1208
Repeatability	< 1%.
Lower detectable limit (LDL)	\leq 0.05 ppm.
Resolution	0.01 ppm.
Expected lifetime	> 3 years in air.
Long-term drift	< 1% / month.
Temperature range	-20°C to +55°C.
Pressure range	800 to 1200 hPA.
Operating humidity range	15-95%.
Cross sensitivity	Hydrogen Cyanide (< 1 ppm in 20 ppm concentration) Hydrogen (< 3 ppm in 100 ppm concentration) Sulfur Dioxide (<1 ppm in 10 ppm concentration)

4.2.8 Hydrogen Sulfide (H₂S)

Measurement range	0 - 100 ppm.
Maximum overload	200 ppm.
Accuracy	\leq 1 ppm.
Response time	< 208
Repeatability	< 1%.
Lower detectable limit (LDL)	\leq 1 ppm.
Resolution	0.1 ppm.
Expected lifetime	> 3 years in air.
Long-term drift	< 1% / month.
Temperature range	-40°C to 50°C.
Pressure range	800 to 1200 hPA.
Operating humidity range	10-95%.
Cross sensitivity	Chlorine (-1.5 ppm in 10 ppm concentration)

Carbon Monoxide (3 ppm in 50 ppm concentration) Hydrogen (3 ppm in 100 ppm concentration) Nitrogen Dioxide (-2.2 ppm in 10 ppm concentration)

4.2.9 TVOC

0 - 1000 ppm.
2000 ppm.
\leq 1 ppm.
< 300s
< 1%.
\leq 1 ppm.
0.1 ppm.
> 3 years in air.
< 1% / month.
-40°C to 55°C.
800 to 1200 hPA.
15-95%.

4.3 Key Features

Quick Deployment

Ready to roll right out of the box! This robust system is primed for setup in under 15 minutes. Whether you're monitoring the air inside your living space or tracking pollutants in an industrial setting, the CS-AQMS1 is your go-to for both indoor and outdoor scenarios.

Advanced Monitoring

Dive deep into air quality insights! Effortlessly measure particulates of sizes 1, 2.5, 4, and 10 microns alongside a customizable range of air pollutant gases, including CO, CO₂, O₃, CH₄, SO₂, NO₂, NO_x, VOC, and TVOC. But that's not all. Keep tabs on the air temperature, relative humidity, and barometric pressure for an all-encompassing environmental overview.

Reliable Performance

Designed for resilience, the CS-AQMS1 guarantees unwavering functionality in temperatures ranging from a chilly -20 to a scorching 50°C.

Seamless Connectivity

Stay connected, always! The system boasts 4G LTE and WiFi options—just slot in a SIM card for uninterrupted cellular connectivity. Access your air quality data anytime, anywhere, with cloud availability (subscription-based) and a removable microSD card.

Precision and Ease

Trust in the factory calibration that ensures you're starting with pinpoint accuracy. The intuitive CredoSense cloud dashboard simplifies data visualization, while the built-in self-diagnostics ensure your readings are consistently top-notch.

4.4 Data Logging and Networking Connectivity

- a) Maximum logging rate: Every minute (can change depending on gas sensor's response time)
- b) Storage options: Comes with 32GB microSD card and cloud storage.
- c) Backup feature: Internal data backup during cloud connectivity interruptions.
- d) Internet Access:
 - Cellular: 4G LTE SIM supported. (User needs to provide the SIM card).
 - WiFi: 2.4 GHz.
- e) Always logging: CS-AQMS1 saves data to the SD card, even offline. No internet? No problem!
- f) CredoSense cloud: Use for data access, system updates, and firmware tweaks.
- g) Alert system: Warnings displayed in cloud data for SD or cloud upload issues.

The CS-AQMS1 doesn't support public Wi-Fi with browser logins.

5 Installation

5.1 Mounting the Device

To ensure optimal performance of the CS-AQMS1 device, it is recommended to install the device in a well-ventilated area, free from any obstructions. When utilizing the device indoors, position it at breathing level. If installed outdoors, mount it under a suitable shade to shield it from direct sunlight and protect it from the impact of heavy rainfall. For precise positioning guidance, please refer to Figures 3 and 4.



Figure 3: Avoid horizontal positioning of CS-AQMS1 while mounting.



Figure 4: Place CS-AQMS1 under a proper shade to protect it from direct sunlight and rainfall.

After choosing the desired location for mounting the CS-AQMS1, proceed with the installation process by following the step-by-step guide outlined below:

- 1. Install your CS-AQMS1 securely on a wall or pole (Figures 6 and 7) using either screws or zip ties.
- 2. Mount the sensor probe by employing the sensor mounting plate and securing it with two screws onto a wall or pole. Position the sensor probe vertically, ensuring it is not in close proximity to the CS-AQMS1. Placing it too close may result in the heat generated within the CS-AQMS1 affecting the accuracy of the probe readings. Subsequently, connect the sensor probe's cable to the CS-AQMS1, following the visual reference provided in Figure 5.



Figure 5: Connecting sensor probe to CS-AQMS1.

Figures 6 and 7 depict the CS-AQMS1 securely mounted on both a wall and a pole, show-casing the recommended installation configurations.



Figure 6: The CS-AQMS1 mounted on a wall.



Figure 7: The CS-AQMS1 mounted on a pole.

5.2 Setting up cloud account

Access the CredoSense Cloud platform via data.credosense.cloud, triggering the appearance of a sign-in window (Figure 19). Click on "Create an account", and a new window (Figure 9) will appear. Register using a valid email address, and upon clicking "Register", you will be redirected to the following page, as depicted in Figure 10.

Sign in New user? Create an account						
Email Address						
Password	۲					
Forgot Password	Login					

Figure 8: Signing in window.

Already have an) account? Sign in.
Email	
Name	
Password	۲
Confirm Password	۲
Password must - contain at least 8 charac - one number and one sp - not be a commonly used	ters with at least one letter ecial character d password.

Figure 9: Signing up into cloud.



Figure 10: Account activation.

Access your email inbox and complete the email verification process by clicking on the "VERIFY YOUR EMAIL", button. This action will direct you to the Credosense Cloud platform, where you have the option to customize your profile to align with your preferences. Please be aware that the provided email address will serve as the designated identifier for the configuration of your CS-AQMS1 device.

5.3 Setting up CS-AQMS1

5.3.1 Connect computer or phone to the CS-AQMS1

Activate the device by powering it up. Once the LED begins flashing (Table 2), establish a connection with a computer or phone. Access the WiFi settings on your computer or phone and locate the device (CS-AQMS1 [My Device] as displayed in Figure 11). Connect your computer or phone to the device using the password¹ as indicated in Figure 3.

Upon successful connection, the CS-AQMS1 configuration panel will automatically launch in a browser window (Figure 12). If the window does not appear automatically, follow these steps:

- Open a browser.
- Enter 192.168.4.1 in the address bar and
- Press "Go".

¹The password for all CS-AQMS1 is 'credosense'.



Figure 11: Connect computer or phone to the CS-AQMS1.



Figure 12: The CS-AQMS1 configuration panel.

Click on the "Configure WiFi", button. Subsequently, a list of available WiFi networks (Figure 13) will be displayed on the following page. Choose the WiFi network that you intend to use for the CS-AQMS1 internet connection. Ensure that the selected WiFi network has active internet connectivity.

The WiFi network will only operate on a 2.4GHz frequency.

Osman tehari gor	a . 11			
Tonni	الد ھ			
Brothers	a !			
Mojumder	a .11			
Hafsa Trading Corporation	a . 11			
Hossain	a .11			
Suha!	a .11			
F.F.Foundation LTD.	a . 11			
S. mukul	a .ill			
Asus_88	a .ill			
Rubel	a . 11			
AndroidAP	a .			
AIUB HOME	a .			
SSID				
CredoSense				
Password				
password				
Show Password				
Save				
Refresh				
Back to home				

Figure 13: Choosing a WiFi network for the CS-AQMS1.

Click on "Save", to establish a connection with the selected network. The following window (Figure 14) will then appear:

Saving Credentials Trying to connect to network. If it fails reconnect to AP to try again					
Back to home					

Figure 14: Saving credentials.

Click on "Back to home", and the user will notice the device is connected to the WiFi network (Figure 15).

Ŵ				
CredoSense				
Model: CS-AQMS1				
Air quality monitoring system				
Configure WiFi				
Setup				
Stored Data				
Exit				
Connected to CredoSense with IP 192.168.1.23				

Figure 15: WiFi connected.

5.3.2 CS-AQMS1 Configuration

You can configure various settings for the device, such as the device name, user ID or email, timezone, logging interval, and running average for PM data (Figure 16), by clicking on Setup. Each of these configurations is briefly explained below:

Device ID: A38130 Device name (max 255 characters)*				
My Device				
User id or Email**				
Timezone				
Log interval				
10 Minutes 🗸				
Running Average for PM data O OFF				
ON				
*device restarts if Name or Running Average is changed **user must have active subscription to receive data visit https://data.credosense.cloud for cloud services				
Save				
Back to home				
Connected to CredoSense with IP 192.168.1.23				

Figure 16: Configure the CS-AQMS1.

1. Device name: The designated name serves a dual purpose: it is employed in the cloud

and also appears as the WiFi name when connecting a phone or desktop to CS-AQMS1 for configuration. For instance, if set as "Adam's AQMS", the WiFi name will be displayed (Figure 17) as CS-AQMS1 [Adam's AQMS]. Please be aware that altering the name will prompt a device restart. Following this change, reconnect to the new WiFi to proceed with the setup process.



Figure 17: Showing device name.

- 2. **Timezone**: Select the suitable time zone. This setting is used to record time data within the microSD card.
- 3. **Log Interval**: This feature allows users to choose their preferred logging interval, ranging from 15 seconds to 1 hour. Figure 18 shows a list of available logging intervals.

15 Seconds	
30 Seconds	
✓ 1 Minute	
5 Minutes	
10 Minutes	
15 Minutes	
30 Minutes	
1 Hour	

Figure 18: List of options for setting time intervals.

4. **Running Average for PM Data**: This configuration determines whether the device should use a running average.

ON: The CS-AQMS1 collects PM data every second. Upon logging the data, it computes the average for the complete interval. For instance, if the user sets a logging interval of 1 minute, the CS-AQMS1 will take sixty readings, calculate the average by dividing the sum by 60, and log the average data.

OFF: In this scenario, the CS-AQMS1 refrains from averaging the data throughout the entire interval. Instead, it calculates the average of the data from the last 5 seconds of the logging interval and records that specific value.

Click on "Save" to complete the setup. Press "Go to Home" and then "Exit" to exit configuration mode.

Configuration mode is available for a duration of 10 minutes after powering up. The WiFi network named CS-AQMS1 [—] will no longer be visible after this time period. To initiate reconfiguration, power off the device and then turn it back on. This action will reinstate the CS-AQMS1 [—] WiFi network, enabling the device to be re-configured by connecting to this network.

6 Using the System

6.1 Sign-in to Cloud

Navigate to CredoSense Cloud Platform via data.credosense.cloud. The landing page will prompt you for sign-in credentials, as shown in Figure 19. Please enter the email and password used during the creation of your cloud account.

Sign	in
New user? Create	e an account
Email Address	
Password	۲
Forgot Password	Login

Figure 19: Signing in into cloud.

6.2 Dashboard Overview

After successfully signing in, you will be directed to the dashboard of the CredoSense Cloud Platform, as illustrated in Figure 20. The dashboard homepage displays a list of connected CS-AQMS1 devices. In Figure 20, a single connected device is visible, showcasing details such as device name, model number, device ID, and subscription information. Additionally, there is an option to extend or purchase a subscription by clicking on the "Buy Subscription" button. Detailed information about purchasing or extending a subscription is available in Section 6.2.5.

* Home CredoSense Cloud	× +								~
d b C	Π	a data.credosense.cloud/da	ishboard/			ô 👽 🔺	C. *	. I D ⊡	(• VPN) Ξ
🚼 DailyTasks_2022 🎄 Dash	board Cred M Gmail.com	🕥 Github 🧕 The Partnership A.	. 🧕 রোম্পানী আইন, ১৯৬৪	Incorporating a Li B Company	Law In 🍮 Live Home 3D —	Cold Chain Data L 🖬 Environmental Dat	🖬 Embedded Data L 👖 TI	iomasnet® - Pro	ж
🥸 CredoSense								۵	0 ·
 ☆ Home ■ Data loggers 	Home								
🛓 Download data									
Settings	List of Loggers								
Olive Data ▼	Show 10 v entries	5					Search		
♥ Map	Name	t⊹ Model	•• Device ID	++ Subscription	on Left	++ Last Activated Time (G	MT)		7.6
() Set Alarm	AQMS	CS-AQMS1	60D058	281 Day(s)		Nov. 21, 2023, 10:38 a.m.			
	Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entr	ries						Previous 1	Next
	Buy Subscription								

Figure 20: Cloud dashboard of AQMS1.

6.2.1 Data Summary

If you possess a list of connected CS-AQMS1 devices on the cloud platform and wish to view the summary of data for a specific CS-AQMS1, navigate to the "Data Logger" tab in the top left corner. Upon clicking, you will be presented with a list to choose from. Once you select your desired CS-AQMS1, a summary of data will be displayed on the screen, as depicted in Figure 21. The summary will show the minimum, maximum, and average values of the data stored in the cloud so far.

· AQMS CredoSense Cloud	× +											
d Þ C	a data.credosense.cloud/dashb	oard/logger/60D05	8/				ô 💟 🔺		G * ≈ c	G	. VPN	
🚼 DailyTasks_2022 🎄 Dashbo	oard Cred M Omail.com 👩 Github 🧕 The Partnership A 🕴	কাম্পাসী আইন, ১৯৬	Incorporating	a Li 🖪 Company Law In	🍮 Live Home 3D —	Cold Chain Data L	Environmental Dat	Embedded Data L.	Thomasnet®	Pro		
🥸 CredoSense										H 💿	e -	
谷 Home	AQMS									8	20	
📑 Data loggers 👻	1 Hour 8 Hours 24 hours 7 Days 30 Days 9	D Days Custor	n Range									
Settings Live Data	Logger Summary				Map no	ot available						
♥ Map ① Set Alarm	Log Interval: 60 second(s) Data Points: 7 Start Date-time: 20 November 2023, 16:40:49 End Data-time: 21 November 2023, 16:40:49											
	Parameter	Min	Мах	Average								
	Temperature(°C)	25.06	25.67	25.41								
	Relative Humidity(%)	57.30	62.34	59.75								
	Barometric Pressure(mbar)	1009.78	1009.86	1009.83								
	PM 1.0(ug/m3)	20.03	21.28	20.76								
	PM 2.5(ug/m3)	21.01	22.42	21.79								
	PM 4.0(ug/m3)	21.01	22.51	21.80								
	PM 10.0(ug/m3)	21.01	22.56	21.81								
	VOC(VOC Index)	23.00	23.00	23.00								
	Sensor 1 Channel 01		Sensor 1 Channel 03				Sensor 1 Channel 03					
	25.70 Tempentuve(*C)	Q	63	Relativ	e Humidity(%)	e /	1,009,860	Barometric Pressur	s(mbar)		e ,	
							1,009.840			/		

Figure 21: Summary of data.

Continue scrolling to find a graphical representation of your data, showcased in Figure 22.



Figure 22: Graphical representation of data.

6.2.2 Live Monitoring

Live data monitoring is also accessible directly from the dashboard. Click on the "Live Data" tab, and from there, select your CS-AQMS1. You will then be able to observe live data, as depicted in Figure 23.

ers 👻 AQMS					
i data Logger ID Logging I Last Log T	: 60D058 nterval: 60 second(s) ime: 21 Nov, 2023 16:45:33				
Chan	nel 01 - Sensor 1	Channel 02 - Sensor 1	Channel 03 - Sensor 1	Channel 04 - Sensor 1	Channel 05 - Sensor 1
8	26.12 Temperature(°C)	64.12 Relative Humidity(%)	1009.86 Barometric Pressure(mbar)	21.33 PM 1.0(ug/m3)	22.36 PM 25[ug/m3]
Chan	nel 06 - Sensor 1	Channel 07 - Sensor 1	Channel OB - Sensor 1		
	22.36 PM 4.0(ug/m3)	22.36 PM 10.0(ug/m3)	182.00 VOC(VOC Index)		



6.2.3 Editing Device and Finding Information

In Figure 24, three icons are presented, with the icon on the right featuring an "i" symbol designated for device information. Clicking on it will open a small window displaying device information, as illustrated in Figure 25. You will also receive the current firmware version you are using from here. The icon in the middle, featuring a pen and paper sign, is designated for editing the device. From here, you can modify your logger name, set logging intervals, delete the logger, and erase data.



Figure 24: Menu for device information, edit device, and download data.

Device information

Name: Adam's AQMS Logging Interval: 15 seconds Subscription Left: 359 Day(s) Model: CS-AQMS1 Firmware version: 1.5.0 WiFi SSID: CredoSense WiFi password: click to show Network strength: Good (-55 dBm) Error(s): User ID: U264CC Data Logger ID: A38130

Do not share your user ID or data logger ID with others.



Figure 25: Device information.

C Edit Adam's AQMS ×							
Logger name:							
Adam's AQMS							
Interval in seconds							
15							
Use Custom Location							
None							
Longitude							
None							
Close Delete Logger	Delete Data	Save					

Figure 26: Edit your CS-AQMS1 device.

6.2.4 Download Data

A user can download data in four ways, as follows:

1. Click on the download icon shown in Figure 24. A new window will appear. Select the date and time, then proceed to download your data. Alternatively, choose to download data by selecting from a preset time duration listed at the bottom of Figure 27.

Download Adam's AQMS Data	×
From	
02/14/2024, 01:54 PM	
То	
02/14/2024, 01:54 PM	
Download	
Quick Download	
24hr 7days 30days Download all	

Figure 27: Download data from the top-right menu.

2. Click on the "Download Data" tab in the main menu located at the top-left corner of the dashboard. A new window will appear (Figure 28).

Download Data	×
Select logger:	
Adam's AQMS	
From date	
mm/dd/yyyy,:	
To date	
mm/dd/yyyy,:	
Download	

Figure 28: Download data from the menu (top-left).

3. Download data directly from the microSD card. At first, remove the microSD card from the device by gently pushing it. Figures 29 and 30 demonstrates how to remove your microSD card from the CS-AQMS1. After the removal from device, connect the microSD card to the computer, and within the "data" folder, locate your data in CSV file format. Each month's data is stored in a separate file.



Figure 29: Unscrew the device.



Figure 30: Remove microSD card.

- 4. You can download data from a microSD card without removing it from the device. To do this, please follow the following steps:
 - a) Power off the device if it is currently powered on.
 - b) Turn the power back on.
 - c) From a computer or phone, search for available WiFi networks.
 - d) Look for a network name that starts with CS-AQMS1 and connect to that network.

- e) If prompted, enter "credosense" as the password.
- f) The configuration page should automatically open (Figure 31). If not, open a browser and type 192.168.4.1 in the address bar.
- g) Click on the "Stored Data" button.
- h) If a microSD card is present, the files on the microSD card will be displayed on the screen.
- i) Download the files onto your computer or phone using the browser.



Figure 31: Download data from the configuration panel.

6.2.5 Buy/Extend Subscription

When a new device is purchased and connected to the cloud for the first time, the 7-day subscription is automatically enabled. To extend the subscription period or purchase a new subscription package, click on the "Buy Subscription" button, as shown in Figure 32. The process of purchasing or extending a subscription is outlined in Figures 33, 34, 35, and 36, providing step-by-step guidance for your convenience.

🥸 CredoSense					₩@ #@- Θ-
nd Home					
🛢 Data loggers 💌	Home				
🛓 Download data					
Settings	List of Loggers				
O Live Data 🔷 🔻	Show 10 v entries				Search
9 Мар	Name	** Model	The Device ID	The Subscription Left	The Last Active The
() Set Alarm	Adam's AQMS	CS-TEST	A38130	7 Day(s)	a second ago
	Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entries				Previous 1 Next
	Buy Subscription				

Figure 32: Purchase or extend cloud subscription.

Show 10 v entries					Search
Name	++ Model ++	Device ID ++ Sub	scription Left	++ Package	++
Adam's AQMS	CS-AQMS1	A38130 7 D	ay(s)	365 days	Add to Cart
Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entries					Previous
Pricing					
Logger model	Package name	Duration(days)	Price		
CS-AQMSI	365 days	365	USD \$60.00		
CS-AQMSI	30 days	30	USD \$5.00		
CS-AW5-6	30 days	30	USD \$6.00		
CS-AWS-6	365 days	365	USD \$70.00		
CS-D1824	365 days	365	USD \$50.00		
CS-WS-F3	365 days	365	USD \$50.00		
CS-WS-F3000	30 days	30	USD \$5.00		
CS-WS-F5	365 days	365	USD \$70.00		
CS-WS-F5	180 days	180	USD \$40.00		
CS-WS-F5	30 days	10	1150 \$30.00		

Figure 33: Add package to cart.

I CREDOSENSE					
# Home					
Data loggers 👻 Checke	but				
Lownload data	Billing address				
# Settings	Email				
🕽 Live Data 🛛 🔻	yemic57671@alibrs.co	m			
Map	Full Name				
9 Set Alarm	Account Name				
	Address				
	None				
	Order total: \$5.65 Create Order Cart Items Logger ID	Package	Duration (Days)	Amount	Remove
	A38130 C5-A0M51	30 days	30	5.00	Û
	Tax (13.0%)			0.65	
	Tetal (UED)			5.65	

Figure 34: Provide billing information

🥸 CREDOSENSE					≍⊚ ≜⊚ ⊤ θ⊤
∯Home ≣Data loggers →	New Order created. On	der ID: 62			×
▲ Download data	Orders				
O Live Data *	Show 10 v entries				Search:
Q Мар	Order ID	++ Order Date	+ Order Amount	++ Status	14 14
() Set Alarm	Order No.#62	29 Jan 2024, 17:40	5.65 USD	Unpaid	Make Payment
	Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entries				Previous 1 Next

Figure 35: Create an order number.



Figure 36: Choose payment method.

7 Safety Information

7.1 Precautions

1. Operating Environment

Place the monitoring unit in a well-ventilated and dry environment. Avoid extreme temperatures, direct sunlight, and exposure to water.

- 2. Handling and Maintenance Handle the system with care to prevent damage to sensors and components.
- 3. Power Supply

Use only the provided power adapter to avoid damage to the monitoring unit. Ensure the power outlet meets the specified voltage and current requirements.

4. Avoid Contaminants

Do not touch the sensors directly. Keep the sensor ports clean from dust and other contaminants.

5. Optimal Placement

Position the monitoring unit at a height representative of the air quality in the monitored space. Avoid placing the unit near obstacles that could obstruct airflow.

8 Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

This chapter compiles questions submitted by customers through email, direct communication, or our social media platform. We have made every effort to address all these questions, ensuring that customers can benefit from the information provided. It is important to note that we have listed these questions with slight modifications to enhance overall clarity and understanding for everyone.

Q1: We know that, currently, CredoSense supports sensors for CO, CO_2 , O_3 , CH_4 , SO_2 , NO_2 , NO_x , H_2S , CH_2O , VOC, and TVOC gasses. In the CS-AQMS1 system, a user can integrate up to three customized gas sensors. If we wanted to measure all these gases at the same time, is there a way? We understand that we can put at least three different gases at the same time. Could you please confirm that?

Answer to Q1: Currently, our CS-AQMS1 is available in four versions, as outlined in Table 3. Each model comes equipped with four fundamental sensors: Particulate Matter (PM), Temperature, Relative Humidity (RH), and Barometric Pressure (BMP). Furthermore, you have the flexibility to choose any three gas sensors from the options provided in our product description.

#SL	Model	Connectivity	Sensors
1	CS-AQMS1-W	WiFi	PM; Temp., RH, & BMP
2	CS-AQMS1-WL	WiFi, 4G LTE	PM; Temp., RH, & BMP
3	CS-AQMS1-WG	WiFi	PM; Temp., RH, & BMP; Gas sensors
4	CS-AQMS1-WLG	WiFi, 4G LTE	PM; Temp., RH, & BMP; Gas sensors

Table 3: CS-AQMS1 available version.

Points to consider:

- · The price will vary based on the chosen gas sensors
- Each system is designed to accommodate only three specific gas sensors, and this configuration is fixed (users can't swap gas sensors)
- To monitor all gases, one would need to acquire three separate CS-AQMS1 systems. Please let me know if further clarity is needed.
- **Q2:** How is data from the different measurements expressed in the output? Is it point data (for example one value in ppm) or is there a possibility of having a variation in the data and obtaining a graph?

Answer to Q2: Each sensor provides measurements in its specific standard units; for instance, PM sensors report values in ug/m^3 . Every recorded measurement comes with a timestamp based on the logging interval chosen by the user. Users can graph these measurements after downloading them. Alternatively, a graphing dashboard and a real-time data view dashboard are available if they utilize our cloud service. Thus, users have the freedom to decide how they would like to display their data. Some examples below (Figure 37 and Figure 38):



Figure 37: Graph View of the CS-AQMS1 Data



Figure 38: Point View of the AQMS1 Data

Q3: How does calibration work? And how often should we do it? Do we need to do it ourselves or do we need to return it to Bangladesh? Which material/instruments is required for the calibration process?

Answer to Q3: Our sensors come with factory calibration, ensuring high accuracy with minimal drift, typically very slight each year. Although they are designed for precision, it's prudent for users to monitor the readings to determine if recalibration is necessary periodically. We recommend undergoing this recalibration process **every two years** for optimal performance. Conveniently, you won't need to send your sensors abroad for recalibration. As a Canadian company, we manage all calibrations right here in Toronto. It's worth noting that while our primary calibration and customer support is based in Canada, a significant portion of our research and development activities take place in Bangladesh.

Q3: [Sensors in the winter] What are the consequences on the device if the temperature

drops below -30 or -40°C (FYI Our freezers at the university generally can go to only -18°C. We could have access to freezers that go to -80°C for testing, but we don't want to destroy the sensors at the test stage). Does the device only shut down or something else happen? Is there a possibility of losing data? We receive a considerable amount of snow as well. Snow can insulate but it can also melt and create frozen pockets. We might expect more issues (snow melt/freeze/ice expansion) issues in the environments that we will be monitoring. What is your experience with this? In order for the sensors to take reliable measurements, should they be housed in some kind of shield system like the radiation sensors for example?

Answer to Q4: Our sensors can operate in extreme temperatures, like -20°C, and in very high relative humidity levels up to 99%. However, please be aware that the readings may not be entirely reliable in these conditions because the sensors aren't calibrated for such extremes. Rest assured, the system will retain data even in these situations.

Snow poses a unique challenge. If it blocks the air inlet pathways, it can affect the system's performance. We have equipped our CS-AQMS1 with a specially designed heater to combat this. Nevertheless, it's crucial to position the sensor in a location where snow accumulation isn't an issue. We advise placing the sensor within a protective housing for sites anticipating severe winter conditions. An example would be a 5mm thick white opaque plexiglass housing, as the attached image demonstrates (Figure 39). This cost-effective solution will ensure the sensor's optimal performance and longevity throughout winter.



Figure 39: A low-cost housing for winter protection